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PREAMBLE

“.. Be of the same mind one toward another; mind not high Kings, but
condescend to men f:rf low estate; be not wise in Your oW Cconcerts.
Provide things honest in the sight of all men. Be not overcome of evil,
but overcorme evil with good.

Romans ch. 12v 16 - 21

One of the most disturbing aspects of the conduct of the Police Service is the evidence that
emerged revealing the fact that the police were quick to arrest and prosecute when it suited
them for example, more than 500 “offenders™ who had attacked and resisted the police during
the VNPF troubles in less than 2 weeks. Moreover, it also became apparent that selected
other cases are dealt with quickly. There is clear evidence of reluctance to take any kind of
action against anyone in the category of "big men” while “small people” were pursued.

It is obvious that priority in these matters is very much a disorderly and unfair gamble, and is
symptomatic of the undisciplined and unbalanced attitudes which arise from lack of training,
discipline and good example. This results in a growing lack of confidence in the police.

It is time that a new training philosophy was put in place to raise the standard of performance
as well as police morale and behaviour,

SUMMARY

On 10 September 1996 the Office of the Ombudsman, on its own initiative,
commenced an enquiry into the conduct of the Vanuatu Police Force relating to the
continuous delays in police investigations, in particular to major misappropriation
cases and one assault case. The accused included government leaders, and palitical
advisers.

Police admitted that these cases had not been passed on for prosecution for a
variety of reasons. Police took up to seven years to complete investigations.

The Ombudsman found that standard procedures for recording, investigation and
supervision were not enforced. The Ombudsman also found that the police failed to
carry out their duties, the Officer-In-Charge of Criminal Investigation Department
( OIC CID" did not supervise these investigations properly and investigations were
delayed for unjustified reasons.

Consequently, these criminal offences have not been prosecuted with the result that
alleged offenders have not been brought fo justice and misappropriated funds have
not yet been recovered.



FINAL REPORT
ON THE
DELAY ON POLICE INVESTIGATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PEEBRMBLE o i iiia oo o s e ety SR 1
1. JUBISDICTION o s e s e s e

2. PURPOSE, SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION AND METHODS USED......3

3 DUTLINE: OF EVENTS ..ccnnmvaimummsissiinsne dasvis sstive siss v sinisinsg
4. RESPONSES TO THE PRELIMINARY REPORT...cccciciiriiciermanerennans 9
5. RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS.......ccocormiimrrmmramincnssmmsnnsrnnnes 10
5.3 S6(1) OF THE POLICE ACT (CAP 105)...ccccimismiecssniessonssssmsnssnsanses1 0
B FINDIIRES covouin v insnmmensmen s s om s onmssmi e a0 s R S e e R 10
Finding No: 1. The former Police Commissioner Mr Lue Siba and  the Police Commissioner Mr Peler
Bong breached the Leadership Code, Article 66(1) (b}, (¢} and (d) of the Constitution, . 10

Finding No. 2 Former Commissioner Luc Siba, Commissioner Peter Bong, Super mtendem dea Rdeu
Inspector George Namaka, Inspector George Twomey, Sergeant Jean Yve Kali, Corporal Judah Silas,
Corperal Jean Paul Toure and former Chiel Tnspector Andrew Bambara, breached Section 4(2) of the Police
AcL (CAP 103).. . . 1
Finding No. 3 The LL‘ITH.]UU. UJ lnspu_tur (JLUI"-"L .\Iamdka ‘:u;mmlu:duu Vake Rakau and Chict lnspccim
Andrew Bambara was improper in thal they breached Section | of the Force Standing Orders on Olfenecs

and Complaints and Action by Police. .......... e dl
Finding No. 4: The administrative practice of Lhe ‘.*zmu&tu Pollcc F arce is dcf;.-:nvc in thd.t thc ld.W'i dnd
procedures an_ not enforced and as a resull ﬂgmlmam delays in prosecution occur. e el |
Finding No. 5: Mr Siba has been implicated in other reports published hy this [‘rfﬁ{.E have e 12
7. RECOMMENDATIONS.. R e e e T
Recommendation No.1: Mr Luc '~‘>1b‘1 never he appmmed to any 1eadcrqh|p post again, nor to any post in
e PR e oy s o S e S S T R R e e e e e 13
Recommendition Nu. 2 The Police Service Commission investigate and take any disciplinary proceedings
warranted against Mr Peler Bong for failing to properly supervise the Police Force .o 013
Recommendation Ne. 3: The Police Service Commission investigate and take any disciplinary procesdings
warranted against Mr Geor,g.-: Namaka [or failing w properly supervise CI1. <13
Recommendation No. 4: The Police Service Commission investigate and rakc any dlscmlmmy prmeedlngq
warranted against Mr Vake Rakau for failing to properly supervise CID............... . .13
Recommendation No. §: Mr Rakau be removed from his post as OIC CID to another pml in the Police
Liorce which does not require investigations skills and being responsible for the work of others... e
Recommendation Ne.6: The Police Service Commission investigate and take any disciplinary praccedings
warranied against Mr Andrew Bambara for failing to investigate Mr Kalmet's 1989 case. ... 13
Recommendation No.7; The system ol administration and mvestigation be reviewed to minimise undue
delays and general inelficicney within the FOree. ..o e es s es e U3
vk LoD 5o [ ], (OO ———— R -
9. INDEX OF APPENDICES (o imii i s ssiis s s e s v s iavioe 14



1.1

12

2.2

23

3.1

3.1.1

JURISDICTION

The Ombudsman conducted this enguiry in accordance with art 62 of the Constitution
and sections 14 an 17 of the Ombudsman Act No. 14 of 1995. Under At 62 of the
Constitution, the Ombudsman is empowered to enquire into matters either on his own
initiative or upen receiving complaints from any persons as a result of a particular
conduct or action by another person.

The Ombudsman Act continues to apply to this case regardless of its recent repeal,

since the investigation began while the Act was in effect (Interpretation Act [CAP 132]
s. 11).

PURPOSE, SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION AND METHODS USED

The purpose of this report is to present my findings in accordance with Article 63 of
the Constitution and Section 24 of the Ombudsman Act,

The scope of this investigation is to ascertain the relevant facts with respect to police
delayed investigations into cases of misappropriation of public funds and an assault
case and to determine whether:

. the conduct of Mr Luc Siba, the former Commissioner, and Mr Peter Bong,

Commissioner of Police, during the period of these police delayed
investigations was proper;

. the conduct of Messrs George Namaka, George Twomey, Jean-Yve Kali,
Judah Silas, Jean Paul Toure, and Andrew Bambara, who are police
investigation officers, was proper;

° the administrative practice of the VVanuatu Police Force is defective;

. Mr Luc Siba and Mr Peter Bong breached the Leadership Code,

This Office acquires relevant information and documentation by informal request,
summons, correspondence, personal interviews and research.

OUTLINE OF EVENTS

The police case files subject to this enquiry are listed below.
MR THEODORE SOLONG

A strong supporter of the Union of Moderate Parties (UMP). Posts held: Third Political
Secretaries in the Ministries of Transport & Public Works, Third Secretary in the
Ministry of Telecommunication, Civil Aviation, Meteorological Services & Postal
Services,

Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of funds. VT.129.000
Date reported to the police: 31/10/95

Date sent for prosecution: Case file is still with the police.
Duration of Investigation: Now over 32 months.

Police Investigating Officer. Corporal Judah SILAS

On 31 October 1995 a complaint was made to the police that Mr Theodore Solong,
the former Third Secretary in the Ministry of PWD, misappropriated an amount of
VT.129.000 during early 1995. This fund was for the Vietimboso GCommunity.
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The Ombudsman asked the Police Commissioner, Mr Siba by letter on 9 January
1986 whether the police were investigating this complaint and when the file would be
forwarded to the Public Prosecutor. A letter from Mr Peter Bong Officer In Charge,
Criminal Investigation Department (OIC CID) on 19 January 1996 to the
Ombudsman stated that only a number of witness statements were needed to
corggzlete the investigation. Copies of these letters are attached as Appendices 1
and 2.

The Ombudsman asked Mr Siba en 7 February 1996 whether the paolice had already
obtained a statement from Mr Sclong. On 13 February 1996, Mr Siba admitted that
he was not aware of what was happening in some investigations and suggested that
the Ombudsman enquire with the Public Prosecutor. Copies of these letters are
attached as Appendices 3 and 4.

The Ombudsman asked to examine the Crime Docket on the investi?atinn into this
complaint in June 1896. It then discovered that this complaint was only registered in
the police register in June, over seven months after it was reported and five months
after the Ombudsman had started her investigation. This is contrary to standard
procedure. (Appendix 13).

On 11 September 1996 during an interview with the Ombudsman, the OIC CID
Inspector Namaka said that a statement had already been obtained from Mr Solong.
However, during the inspection of the Crime Docket the Ombudsman saw no
statemnent from Mr Solong.

The Public Prosecution Depariment stated to the Ombudsman on 23 March 1988 that
the Department had already received a police case file on this complaint but was not
satisfied with the investigation, so the file would be sent back to the police for further
investigation. Three years after the complaint was made the police still have not
finalised their investigation.

MR THEODORE SOLONG
Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of funds VT.1.000.000.
Date reported to the police: 11 June 1996

Case file sent for prosecution: The case was listed to go before the court on 1
April 1998.

Duration of investigation: Over 20 months.
Police Investigating Officer: Corporal Judah SILAS

On 11 June 1996 a second complaint about misuse of funds against Mr Solong was
made to the police. The complaint involved the amount of VT.1.000.000 that was
deposited in his name on behalf of the Gaua Community for the purchase of a motor
vehicle. This money was never used to purchase a vehicle for the community.

Mr Sclong was interviewed by the police one week before the Ombudsman
inspected the Crime Docket. The case is now with the Public Prosecutor.

The police stated that their investigation into this complaint had already been
completed and the crime docket was sent to the Public Prosecutor on 29 August 1996.
The Public Prosecutor confirmed on 4 July 1997 that the crime docket had been sent
back to the Palice for further evidence. The Public Prosecutor stated to the
Ombudsman on 23 March 1998 that this case will be heard before the Supreme
Court on 1 April 1998 for plea.

MR WAIMINI PEREI

A strong UMP supporter from Santo. He occupied senior posts within the
Government Ministries that came under the responsibilities of the former Prime Minister
Mr Rialuth Serge Vohor. Posts held: Principal Immigration Officer, Director of National
Tourism Office, Chairman of the Police Service Commission, and lastly the Director of
Public Service Department.

Offence: Alleged Unlawful removal of Government property
Date reported: 8 March 1998
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Date sent for prosecution: 18 September 1996

Duration of investigation: Over 6 months (it took more than 3 months to obtain
one statement from Mr Perei by the Police)

Police Investigating Officer: Inspector George TWOMEY and Inspector
NAMAKA

An allegation of unlawful removal of Government property against Mr Waimini Perei
was made to the Police on 8 March 1996. It was alleged that Mr Perei unlawfully
removed 5 Law Volumes, Public Finance Act and other Regulations. Inspector
Namaka dealt with the investigation.

A Search Warrant was executed at the residence of Mr Parei on 10 March 1996 where
the items were found, These items were seized by the police.

Inspector Namaka told the Ombudsman during his interview that six months after the
complaint was made, a caution statement had not been obtained, but that he intended
to abtain one from Mr Perei on 11 June 1296.

The crime docket was finally sent to the Prosecution Department on 18 September
1996.

Mr Perei appeared before the Magistrates Court on 17 March 1997. |t took over a
year for the police investigation and prosecution process to be completed. His
caution statement was only obtained and the investigation was only finalised when
the Ombudsman started her enquiry.

MR ONNYNE TAHI (Deceased)

He was formally a strong supporter of the Vanuaaku Party (VP) but changed his
affiliation to the National United Party (NUP) and, before his death, one of the
founders of the People's Democratic Party (PDP). Post held: Speaker of Parliament,
Government Minister.

Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of public funds VT.249.200
Date reported to the police: 29 February 1996
Date sent for prosecution: Case file still with the police.

Duration of investigation: The investigation was still ongoing 17 months after the
complaint had been laid.

Police Investigating Officer: Corporal Jean Paul TOURE

An allegation of misappropriation of public funds against the late Mr Onnyne Tahi
was made to the police on 29 February 1996, The amount involved was
VT.249.200. According to Inspector Namaka's statement this investigation was
delayed due to non-availability of funds to pay for airfares in order for the late Mr Tahi
to be seen on Ambae.

The Saratamata Police Station is about 5 km from the late Mr Tahi's village. It was
possible for late Mr Tahi to be seen at the Saratamata Police Station.

Mr Siba informed the Ombudsman on 24 April 1996 that the investigation into the
complaint was still ongoing, however, he later informed the Ombudsman that he
would release funds so that a police investigator could go to Ambae

The police investigation into this complaint is still not completed with the crime docket
still with the police.

Mr Tahi was killed in a road accident on 29 July 1997 and the investigation was never
finalised.

NATIONAL HOUSING CORPORATION

Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of Fund  VT.1.851.400
Date reported to police: 28 November 1995

Date sent for prosecution: Still with the police since 1995

5
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Duration of investigation: Over 30 months.
Police Investigating Officer: Sergeant Jean Yve KALI

On 28 November 1995 the General Manager of the National Housing Corporation
(NHC) Mr Paul Wilie alleged to the Police that the former Manager of NHC,
Mr Philibert Raupepe, and the former Secretary/Accountant, Mr Hugo Bahnesem, had
allegedly misappropriated funds amounting to VT.1.951.400, being the NHC funds.

This fund was drawn to finance a trip for Messrs Raupepe and Bahnesem to go to
the USA to negotiate funding for the NHC projects. The former Minister of Home
Aftairs Honourable Charley Nako, responsible for NHC, instructed them to postpone
the trip, however they went ahead anyway and ended up in Fiji rather than the USA.

Mr Raupepe was interviewed by police of the 24 April 1996. Mr Bahnesem was
interviewed by the police on 25 Aprl 1998, four months after the complaint was made.
The police said that the Crime Docket prepared on this investigation has already
been sent for prosecution.

The crime docket was sent back to the police on 26 September 1996 by the Public
Prosecutor for further evidence to be collected. It is now over twenty seven months
and the crime docket is still with the police.

CHARLIE KALMET

Formerly a strong supporter of the VP but in 1988 he changed his affiliation to the
Melanesian Progressive Party (MPP). Post held: President of the former Efate Local
Government Council, President of the SHEFA Province, and the Private Secretary to
the former Deputy PM Mr Barak Sope.

Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of fund VT.824.580
Date reported to the police: 14 April 1989

Date sent for prosecution: 24 October 1996
Duration of investigation: Over 7 years.

Police Investigating Officer: Former Deputy CIC CID Mr Andrew BAMBARA,
Inspector NAMAKA and Inspector George TWOMEY

An allegation of misappropriation of funds was reported to the police on 14 April 19889,
These funds were former Efate Local Government Council (ELGC) funds and the
misappropriation occurred during the period when Mr Kalmet was its President.
Mr Kalmet took advances of VT824,590 which were never approved and that he
never reimbursed. The Ombudsman found no action was taken on this investigation.
The original police crime docket was filed away by the former Deputy OIC CID
Mr Andrew Bambara and is now missing.

The Ombudsman wrote to the Acting Commissioner of Police Mr Seule Takal on 8
March 1986 concerning unpaid advances made by Mr Kalmet in 1988. The
Ombudsman requested Mr Takal to check this matter and give reasons as to why it
had not been investigated. Mr Takal instructed the GIC CID on 11 March 1996 to
investigate this complaint, A copy of this letter is attached as Appendix 5.

The investigation into this complaint was completed and the crime docket sent to the
Prosecution Department on 24 October 1996.

On 28 May 1997 Inspector George Twomey confimmed that this investigation was
completed on the documents obtained again from the Department of Provincial Affairs
files. The original police case file opened for this investigation in 1988 could not be
found.

The Public Prosecutor confimed on 16 October 1997 that the case went to the
Magistrates Court for preliminary enquiry on 25 September 1997. [t has been
committed to the Supreme Court, and the case should be heard in September 1998, 9
years after the report to the Police,

CHARLIE KALMET
Offence: Alleged Misapproptiation of fund VT.10.228.845

6
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Date reported to the police: January 1996
Date sent for prosecution: 24 October 19896
Duration of investigation: Over 9 manths.

Police Investigating Officer: Inspecior George TWOMEY and Inspector George
NAMAKA

The Ombudsman submitted formal recommendations in the Ombudsman’s Public
Report entitled: ALLEGED MISAPPROFPRIATION OF FUNDS BY THE PRESIDENT
OF SHEFA FPROVINCE AND MALADMINISTRATION OF THE SHEFA
PROVINCIAL COUNCIL, dated 23 July 1996. A copy of this report was sent to the
then Commissioner of Police Mr Siba on 23 July 1996, and his attention was drawn to
paragraph 19 which states:

19.1. | am asking the police to finalise the investigation into the alleged
misappropriation of Shefa Province Council funds by Charlie Kalmet and refar
it to the Public Prosecutor, ... alleged aiding and abetting or misfeasance by
the Councillors.

The investigation must specifically look at breaches of Penal Code (CAP 135},
and move immediately to prosecution if sufficient evidence of
misappropriation is found.

19.2. The Commissioner of Police must determine by way of an intermal police
investigation why the previous case of misappropriation against Mr C Kalmet
was not proceeded with, The Commissioner must ensure that this case is
immediately transferred to the Public Prosecutor.

The Acting Director of Department of Provincial Affairs Mr J. Tensley Lulu wrote to the
Commissioner of Police on 2 August 1996 requesting him to carry out an investigation
as stated in the Ombudsman Public Report on the SHEFA Provincial Government
President. Mr Lulu stated his concem that the police had failed to prosecute Mr Kalmet
on the first allegation of misappropriation made against him. (Appendix 6).

The Ombudsman wrote again to Mr Siba on 13 August 1996 asking him to take note
of the findings and recommendations of this report. The Ombudsman, in accordance
with s25(2) of the Ombudsman Act No 14 of 1995, requested Mr Siba to notify the
Ombudsman Office of what course of action he proposed to take after the expiration
of 15 days from the date he received this letter. A copy cf this letter is attached as
Appendix 7.

Mr Tete wrote on 20 August 1996 to the Commissioner of Police stating his concemn
that it was now seven months since he provided the police with the coverage report
on the allegation of misappropriation of funds against Mr Kalmet. Mr Tete requested
that prompt action be taken by the police so that Mr Kalmet could be prosecuted.
Appendix 8.

Mr Siba informed the Ombudsman on 27 August 1996 that the complaint was under
police investigation with only a statement from Mr Kalmet to be obtained. Once this
was done the investigation would be completed and sent to the Public Prosecutor.
Appendix 9.

On 30 August 1998, Mr Tete informed the Commissioner of Police of additional records
on personal cash advances taken by Mr Kalmet which amounted to VT.2.224.000 for
a period February - August 1986, (Appendix 10),

According to Inspector Namaka during his interview with the Ombudsman, this
complaint was reported to the police on 11 September 1936, about 15 months ago.
Upon the inspection of the police crime docket on this investigation the Ombudsman
discovered that no action was being taken on the investigation.

Mr Kalmet was only interviewed by the palice on 13 September 1996 after the
Ombudsman's interview with Inspector Namaka concerning the delays of the Police.

The Public Prosecutor confirmed on 16 October 1997 that the case went to the
Magistrates Court for preliminary enquiry on 25 September 1997. It was committed to
the Supreme Court.
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The delay for this Enveati%aticm since the original complaint on 2 August 1996 by
Tensley Lulu is unacceptable.

The case should be heard in court in September 1998, 3 years after it was first
reported to the Police.

MR ALFRED CARLOT

A strong supporter of the UMP. Post held: First Secretag in the Ministry of
Agriculture, Executive with the Vanuatu Commodities Marketing Board.

Offence: Alleged Misappropriation of public fund. VT.482.176
Date reported to the police: 27 March 1996

Date sent for prosecution: 2 July 1997

Duration of investigation: 15 months.

Police Investigating Officer: Inspector George NAMAKA

A complaint of misappropriation of public funds was reported to the police on 27
March 1996 by the then Office Supervisor Mr Pierre Marie Bubunbo. It was alleged
that Mr Alfred Carlot, the then First Secretary of the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock,
Forestry and Fisheries authorised the payment by the Government Local Purchase
QOrder the following items:

a) One deep freezer - VT. 92.000
b) One Yamaha Generator - VT.148.200
c) Two Lawn mowers - VT.127.286
d) Two Lawn mowers - VT.114.680

These items were allegedly donated to communities on Efate as political gifts by
Mr Carlot.

During the Ombudsman's investigation, she was told that the case against Mr Carlot
had been cancelled. She was told that Mr Namaka was approached by
Mr Alfred Carlot who asked him to cancel his complaint and he did so. Mr Namaka
stated that he cancelled the complaint because Mr Carlot visited him and asked to do
80.

Mr Namaka initiated the cancellation of a complaint of misappropriation of public funds
made against Mr Alfred Carlot contrary to standard practice which is that al
complaints where public funds are involved must be Investigated, and that the crime
docket must go as far as the Public Prosecutor who alone makes a decision on
whether further action is to be taken. It was only the Ombudsman's enquiries which
alerted the investigating officer that the complaint had been cancelled, and caused its
reinstatement.

The case is still with the Police some two years later.

MESSRS WILLIE JIMMY, WILLIE KALORISU, PAKOA SANDY AND NOEL
FAENOLAVE

Strong supporters of the UMP. Mr Jimmy is a former Minister of Finance and Minister
of Foreign Affairs. Messrs Kalorisu, Sandy and Faenolave are strong supporters of
Mr Jimmy.

Offence: Alleged Intentional Assault and Trespass

Date reported to the police: 28 October 1985

Date sent for prosecution: 14 December 1996

Duration of investigation: Over 1 year

Police Investigating Officer: Inspector George NAMAKA

On 28 October 1995 Mr Kaltau Aiong made complaints of intentional assault, criminal
trespass and damage to property to the police stating that seven people from

8
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Tongoa Island unlawfully entered his residence, assaulted him and damaged his
roperty. The Minister of Foreign Affairs Mr Willle Jimmy was also present during this
incident, which cccurred on 28 October 1995.

The Ombudsman wrote to Inspector Namaka on 24 January 1896 requesting
information on any report of misconduct of Hon. Willie Jimmy. Inspector Namaka
responded through a letter on 25 April 1996 to the Ombudsman saying that a
complaint of assault against Hon. Wilie Jimmy was near completion and the
Ombudsman would be advised of the result. Appendices 11 and 12.

The investigation of this complaint was left unattended until 26 May 1996 when Hon.
Willie Jimmy submitted his caution statement to the police. This was only done when
the Ombudsman asked to examine the Crime Docket. The Crime Docket was sent to
the Public Prosecutor.

On 12 March 1997 the Public Prosecutor Chiet John Wiliam Timakata informed the
Ombudsman Office that there was insufficient evidence to proceed on a charge of
intentional assault against Hon Willie Jimmy, however charges of criminal trespass
and intentional assault were filed against Messrs Kalorisu, Sandy and Faenclave.
They appeared before the Magistrate Court on 28 May 1998, nineteen (19) months
after the file was sent for prosecution, but the charges were withdrawn by the
prosecution because the date of incident mentioned in the charges was 30 October
1996 when the actual date the incident occurred was on 28 October 1995, and the
complainant's statement was also missing in the case file.

RESPONSES TO THE PRELIMINARY REPORT

The preliminary report in this matler was issued on 13 August 1998 in accordance with
Article 62{4) of the Constitution and Section 16(4) of the Ombudsman Act, which
requires that the person or body complained of be given an cpportunity to reply to the
complaints made against them.

The preliminary was issued to the following people:

Mr Luc Siba . former Commissicner of Police
Mr Peter Bong - Commissioner of Police

Mr Vake Rakau " Superintendent of Police

Mr George Namaka - Chief Inspector of Police

Mr George Twomey - Inspector of Police

Mr Andrew Bambara - Police Sergeant

Mr Jean Yve Kali - Police Sergeant

Mr Judah Silas - Police Corperal

Mr Jean Paul Toure - Police Corporal

Responses were received from:

Mr Judah Silas

He said that he was the one investigating Mr Solong's case. He went to the
TORBA Province in April 1997 fo obtained statements and on his retumn to Vila he
gave the case file to Inspector Namaka to conduct the final interview

MNo responses were received from:

Mr Luc Siba - former Commissioner of Police
Mr Peter Bong - Commissioner of Police

Mr Vake Rakau - Superintendent of Police

Mr George Namaka = Chief Inspector of Police

Mr George Twomey - Inspector of Police

Mr Andrew Bambara - Paolice Sergeant

Mr Jean Yve Kali - Police Sergeant

Mr Jean Paul Toure - Police Corporal

These people, including the present Police Commissioner, have not answered our
preliminary report and have not forwarded to our office any comment and this office
will have to assume that they agreed with the facts as presented.
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RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
CONSTITUTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU
CONDUCT OF LEADERS

66.(1) Any person defined as a leader in Ardicle 67 has a duly to conduct himself in
such a way, bath in his public and private life, so as not to-

{a}) place himself in a postien in which he has or could have a conflict of
interests or in which the fair exercise of his public or official duties might
be compromised;

() demean his cffice or position;
{c} allow his integrity to be called into question; or

(d) endanger or diminish respect for and confidence in the integrity of the
Government of the Republic of Vanuatu.

(2) In particular, a leader shall not use his office for personal gain or enter into any
transaction or engage in any enterprise or activity that might be expected to
give rise to doubt in the public mind as to whether he is carrying out or has
carried out the duty imposed by subarticle (1).

DEFINITION OF A LEADER

67. For the purposes of this Chapter, a leader means the resident of the Republic,
the Prime Minister and other Ministers, members of Parliament, and such
public servants, cfficers of Government agencies and other officers as may be
prescribed by law.

POLICE ACT (CAP 105
s4(2) of the Police Act CAP 105 provides:

The Force shall be employed throughout Vanualu and its territorial waters for -

d) the prevention and detection of offences and the production of offenders before
the court

s6(1) of the Police Act (CAP 105)

The Commissioner shall have the command, superintendence and direction of the Force,
and ... may ...

{b) make Force Orders for the general government of members .

In line with this Act, the Force Standing Orders on Offences And Complaints
Reported And Action By Police provide that:

51 All Officar-in-Charge of Police Stations and depanments within the Force, have the
responsibility to ensure that:

a) all offences and complaints are propetly attended to at the time they are received:
and

b} that proper supervision is given to ensure the subsequent investigation is thoroughly
and speedily completed.

FINDINGS

Finding No: 1. The former Police Commissioner Mr Luc Siba and the
Police Commissioner Mr Peter Bong breached the
Leadership Code, Article 66(1) (b), (c) and (d) of the
Constitution.

Mr Siba was appointed Commissioner of Police on 30 August 1994. He resigned on

14 February 1997. Mr Bong was appointed Commissioner of Palice on 27 June

1997, after occupying the post on an acting basis since November 1886.

10
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Both Mr Siba and Mr Bong did not carry out their duties and responsibilities as
Heads of the Vanuatu Police Force. They did not manage and supervise the Criminal
Investigation Department properly. There is a proper monitoring system in place so
that the Office of the Commissioner of Police can manitor the work productivity of
each section of the Police on a monthly basis. Mr Siba and Mr Bong failed to follow
the system of regular checks on senior officers who were handling police
investigations into some complaints made against leaders. In fact, they were at the
least negligent and at most wilfully contributed to the delay in the investigations by
Bogcarrying out their duties as outlined in the Police Act and in the Force Standing
rders.

Because of the lack of prosecution of these political people, the conduct of Mr Siba
endangered or diminished respect for and confidence in the integrity of the
Government of the Republic of Vanuatu. Mr Peter Bong has also contributed to the
loss of respect and confidence of the people of Vanuatu for the Police, because he
was not able to get his officers to proceed and finalise these outstanding
investigations.

The people of Vanuatu are lesing and will continue to lose the confidence and trust
they have in the police and their ability to maintain law and order as long as such
delays occur and leaders or political powerful pecple are not prosecuted.

Finding No. 2 Former Commissioner Luc Siba, Commissioner Peter
Bong, Superintendent Vake Rakau, Inspector George
Namaka, Inspector George Twomey, Sergeant Jean Yve
Kali, Corporal Judah Silas, Corporal Jean Paul Toure and
former Chief Inspector Andrew Bambara, breached
Section 4(2) of the Police Act (CAP 105)

The law states that it is the duty of every Policeman or Policewoman to prevent the
commission of cime and to investigate offences and to arrange for prosecution of
offenders. In all the investigations subject of this repor, each police officer involved
did not carry out his duty according to law.

Messrs Twomey, Kali, Silas and Toure were investigation officers in these
investigations. Even though they were poorly supervised, they also contributed to
the delay in these investigations when, as investigation officers, they failed to
complete their investigations as required by procedure, and did not question events
which they must have known were contrary to standard procedure.

These investigations involved public funds and properties. Due to these officers'
delayed action, these funds cannct be recovered. One of the people who is subject
of one of these police investigations has died. If the police investigations had been
attended to properly, funds allegedly misappropriated could have been recovered
from the person before he died.

As well as the delays in investigations, it appears that the standard of work of CID in
general is very poor as many files have been repeatedly retumed by the Public
Prosecutor for further investigation.

The attitude of these senior police officers is unacceptable. These men are the
backbone of the Police Force and if they avoid enforcing the laws by delaying and
forgetting the files, the sense of justice and community security will be eroded and the
Police Force will eventually become totally discredited. Also, these subordinate
officers cannot escape criticism. It is the duty of all police officers to enforce the law
for all members of the public on an equal basis.

Finding No. 3: The conduct of Inspector George Namaka,
Superintendent Vake Rakau and Chief Inspector Andrew
Bambara was improper in that they breached Section 1 of
the Force Standing Orders on Offences and Complaints
and Action by Police.

11



6.11

6.12

B.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

617

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

With the exception of Mr Kalmet's 1989 case (refer to Section 3.7), Inspector Namaka
was ultimately responsible for the delay in all of the police investigations into the
cases mentioned in Section 3 of this report because he was the OIC CID at that
time.

Inspector Namaka did not attend to them using proper investigation procedures with
which he must be familiar. There was no proper supervision of these investigations
by Inspector Namaka.

Inspector Namaka withdrew the investigation into charges made against Mr Carlot, a
politician, on the instruction of Mr Carlot himself. He was well aware that he could
not dao this because the complaint involved public funds. He was forced to reinstate
it when enquiries were made into the matter.

In the case against Mr Perei, Inspector Namaka only took the statement of Mr Perei
when the Ombudsman started her enquiry. Had there been no Ombudsman
enquiry, this matter would also have been shelved.

Mr Namaka's handling of Police cases is totally unacceptable as Mr Namaka appears
to have been afraid to investigate complaints against important political people. This
isﬁpot acceptable behaviour for a paolice officer and even less so for a senior police
officer,

Mr Rakau took over as the QIC CID in November 1996 from Inspector Namaka.
With the exception of Mr Kalmet's 1988 case, he was also responsible for the delay
in all the police investigations into cases subject to this report.

It appears that Mr Rakau took these cases lightly, even when they involved public
officers and funds. The conviction of the people involved and the subsequent
recovery of public funds was also not his priority. During my enquiry, | found out that
his knowledge of the investigation of each case was not up to date. He did not
provide proper supervision for the investigation into these cases. Mr Vake Rakau
has little experience and ftraining in Police investigations matters. However,
Mr Rakau was trained and sat as a Magistrate in the Magistrate Court and must
therefore be familiar with what is requirad for a conviction.

The complaint on Mr Kalmet's 1989 case was reported to the police by the Local
Government Department because these funds were the then Efate Local
Government funds. The withesses and Mr Kalmet lived in Vila at that time but were
never interviewed. Instead Mr Bambara filed away the police case file on
Mr Kalmet's 1989 case for no valid reason. This police file is how missing.

If this case had gone to court, Mr Kalmet would never have been appointed as the
President of SHEFA Provincial Government where he repeated the same thing
involving a larger amount of money.

Finding No. 4: The administrative practice of the Vanuatu Police Force is
defective in that the laws and procedures are not
enforced and as a result significant delays in prosecution
occur.

On numerous occasions, during our investigation over a pericd of 2 years, the
Ombudsman was reassured by the Police that particular actions were imminent, that
Mr Solong’s statement was going to be taken, and many excuses given for lack of
progress.

The Police Commissioner assured the Ombudsman repeatedly that measures were
being taken. He complained about that the Head of CID, Mr Rakau was inefficient,
but nothing was done. No one was disciplined for misconduct or maladministration.
Mr Rakau is still Head of CID. Nr Namaka is still a Chief Inspector.

Finding No. 5: Mr Siba has been implicated in other reports published by

this office have:
J Improper retirement of a Senior Police Officer

12



. Improper appointment of Mr Luc Siba as the Commissioner of Police and his
misconduct in office

Recommendations which the Ombudsman made include Mr Siba

. that Mr Siba not be appointed to positions that demand integrity and effective
administrative skills

. that Mr Siba never be appointed to any Leadership post again, nor to any
post in the Public Service

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendation No.1: Mr Luc Siba never be appointed to any leadership post
again, nor to any post in the Public Service.

Recommendation No. 2: The Police Service Commission investigate and take any
disciplinary proceedings warranted against Mr Peter
Bong for failing to properly supervise the Police Force.

Recommendation No. 3: The Police Service Commission investigate and take any
disciplinary proceedings warranted against Mr George
Namaka for failing to properly supervise CID.

Recommendation No. 4: The Police Service Commission investigate and take any
disciplinary proceedings warranted against Mr Vake Rakau
for failing to properly supervise CID.

Recommendation No.5: Mr Rakau be removed from his post as OIC CID to
another post in the Police Force which does not require
imaestigations skills and being responsible for the work of
others.

Recommendation No.6: The Commissionner of Police investigates and takes any
disciplinary proceedings warranted against Mr Andrew
Bambara for failing to investigate Mr Kalmet's 1989 case.

Recommendation No.7: The system of administration and investigation be
reviewed to minimise undue delays and general
inefficiency within the Force.

8. CONCLUSION

8.1 In accordance with Article 63(2) of the Constitution and Section 22 of the Ombudsman
Act No. 14 of 1995, the Ombudsman reguests the Deputy Prime Minister as Minister
responsible for the police, Chaimman of the Police Service Commission, and
Commissioner of Police to consider these recommendations and put them into effect.

8.2  The Office of the Ombudsman must be notified of the decision and proposed
steps to implement these recommendations within thirty (30) days of the
date of this report.

Dated the 30th day of September 1998

Marie-No&lle FERRIEUX PATTERSON
OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU
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A copy of Ombudsman's letter of 9/1/96 to the Commissioner of Police Mr Siba
regarding police investigation into Mr Solong's case.

A copy of Mr Peter Bong's (then OIC CID) letter of 19/1/96 on Mr Sclong's case.
A copy of Mr Siba's letter of 7/2/98 to the Ombudsman on Mr Solong's case.

A copy of Mr Siba referring the Ombudsman to the Public Prosecutor on cases under
police investigation.

A copy of the Ombudsman letter of 8/3/96 concerning Mr C. Kalmet's 1988 case to the
Commissicner of Police.

A copy of Mr Tensley Lulu's letter of 2/8/96 to the Commissioner of Police raising his
concem on the delay of police investigation into Mr Kalmet's cases.

A copy of the Ombudsman's letter of 13/8/96 to the Commissioner of Police regarding
the findings and recommendations on Mr Kalmet's SHEFA Province public report,

A copy of Mr Tete's letter of 20/8/96 to the Commissioner of Police on the delayed
police investigation in Mr Kalmet's case.

A copy of Mr Siba’s letter of 27/8/96 to the Ombudsman on Mr Kalmet's case.

A copy of Mr Tete's letter of 30/8/96 to the Commissioner of Police regarding
Mr Kalmet's additional personal cash advances.

A copy of Ombudsman's letter of 24/1/96 to Inspector Namaka on Mr Willie Jimmy's
misconduct.

A copy of Inspector Namaka's letter of 25/4/96 to the Ombudsman concerning
Mr Jimmy's assault case.

Police standard procedure.
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Copie de la lettre en date du 9 janvier 1996 du Médiateur au chef de police M. Siba
concernant 'enquéte policiére sur I'affaire de M. Soleng;

Capie de la lettre de Peter Bong (alors directeur de la Police Judiciaire) du 19 janvier
1896 sur l'affaire de M. Sclong;

Copie de la lettre de M. L. Siba du 7 février 1998 sur l'affaire de M. Solong;

Copie de la lettre de M. L. Siba renvoyant le Médiateur devant le Procureur général
pour tout renseignement sur des enquétes menées par la police:

Copie de la lettre du Médiateur du B mars 1996 concernant I'affaire Kalmet de 1988
adressée au chef de police;

Copie de la lettre de M. Tinsley Lulu du 2 aolt 1996 au chef de police lui faisant part
de son inquiétude sur les délais dans les enquétes policiéres sur M. Kalmet;

Copie de la lettre du Médiateur du 13 aolt 1996 au chef de police sur les
constatations et recommandations du bureau du Médiateur publiées dans le rapport
public sur les exactions de M. Kalmet et de la province Shéfa;

Copie de la lettre de M. Tété du 20 ao(it 1996 au chef de police sur les délais dans
les enquétes policiéres sur M. Kalmet;

Copie de la lettre de M. L. Siba du 27 aolt 1996 au Mediateur sur I'affaire Kalmet;

Copie de la lettre de M. Tété du 30 aaolt 1996 au chef de police concermant les
nouvelles avances personnelles gue M. Kalmet s'est octroyé;

Copie de la lettre du Mediateur du 24 janvier 1996 a linspecteur Namaka sur les
manquements de M. Willie Jimmy;

Copie de la lettre de linspecteur Namaka du 25 avril 1996 au Mediateur sur les
allégations d'agression volontaire pesant sur M W. Jimmy;

Procédure policiere nomale.
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OFFICE OF THE funex 1.
OMBUDSMAN

P. 0. BOX, 125
PORT ViLA
VANUATU
Phorne: 27200/ 25757 Fax: 27140 /25880
OMB038/25/MNFP/eri 8th January 1996

Mr Lue Sica
Commissioner of Polica
Police Headquarters
P.M.B. 014

PORT VILA

Dear Sir, _
RE: INVESTIGATION THEODORE SOLONG

A matter has come to our attantion, i.e. that the former Secretary Theodore Solong
allegedly had been issued an LPO of Vt. 129.000 on behalf of *he VETAN BOSC
Community from Banks/Terres and that apparently this amount was never remitted to

the Cemmunity.

We understand that you received a first communication conceming this matter from
the Depariment of Finance on 03.11.85 and a memc from the Public Prosscutor

conceming this alleged misappropriation cn 08.11.85.

We also understand that the main mattar to =stahlish is the fact that the Vatan Beso
Community has not received the funds.

Could you piease let us know whether you are investigating this mafter, and when
this file will be forwarded to the Fublic Prosecuter.

It is 2 matter of concem ic us as our Office is responsicle of the enforcement of the
Lezcership Code.

In accercance with saction 14 (2) (e), a poiitical secratary is 2 leader anc as a leader,
accusations like misapprepriation have got to be treated with dus cars and fully
investigatsd. -

MARI=-NOELLE FERRIEUX FATT=RSON

OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU.



FAX : (678) 25315
TELEX : (771) 1127 VPF NOC
TELEPHONE : (678) 22222 - Ext. : 222

ANNEY 2,

VANUATU POLICE FORCE

Private Mail Bag 014
Pont Vila
VANUATU

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

Your Referance :
Qur Relerence CID/02/25

Mrs .MARIE NOELLE FERRIEUX PATTERSON Dale:19/01/96
OMBUODSMAN QF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

OFFICE QF THE OMBUDSMAN

PO Box 126

PORT VILA

VANUATU

Dear Madam,

RE: INVESTIGATION THEODORE SOLONG

Thank vou for your letter dated 9th January 1996 concerning
the zabove subject matter.

The Dockst file is near completion, it ecnly require a
witness statement from a number of the Vitimboso communizy
to Collaborats the cther statements before the Police can
interrogate Mr. T. SCLONG.

; the officer Incharge S0OLA Police Station
ructad to obtain the szid statement.

has been in
My Office will inform you in éue course cf the out come of
the investigation when the case is completed.

At this stage, it is pre-mature for the Peclice te comment
further on the subject.

Tharnk ,you for your concern and anticipation.

P.BONG(SUPT)
oC CID




ANngx 2
OFFICE OF THE

OMBUDSMAN
F. 0. BOX. 128
PORT VILA
VANUATU
Phone: 27200/ 26757 Fax: 27140/ 25860
OMB1921/98/MNFP/erl 7 February 1998

Mr Luc Siba

The Commissioner of Police
Police Headguarters

P.M.B. 014

PORT VILA

Dear Commissioner,

Within my enquiry on some aspects of inefficiency and lack of discipline of the Paolice,
| would be grateful if you could lock in the matters mentioned here under and indicate
the reasons for delaying the action or the taking of statements as requested by the

Finance Department.

1)  Alfred Carlot alledgedly was granted a personal account for travelling for an
amount of USD 4800. Apparently the trip was cancelled and the money
was not retumead and no explanation was given by Mr Carlot.

Has a statement been taken? If the statement has already been taken,

please let me know what is the next step.

2) The enforcement of the Court Order to seize the vehicle belonging to Mrs
Leah Vuti Leo sentenced to jail. Apparently the vehicle is still parked at
Deou Motors, and the Court Order has not been enforced.

3) Investigation Theordore Solong

Following my letter dated Sth January 1996, and Mr Bong OC CID’s answer,
| understand that you were in the process of obtaining the statement from a

number of the Vitimbose Community.

Have you cbtained these statements and has Mr Theodore Sclong being
interrogated?

Thank you in advance for your help and information in these matters.

MARIE-NOELLE FERRIEUX PATTERSON
OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

Copies: - Director General of Finance
- Public Prosecutor.
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Vanuztu Police Headquarte

FAX I |378) 25315
TELEX : (0771) 1127 VPF NOC
TELEPHONE : (678) 22222 Private Mail Bag ¢
" Portvy
VANUA-
Your Reference
REPUBLIC OF VANUATU Qur Reference 01/02/35

Date 13 Fabru&r;—-’ 194845

The Ombudsman
OCffice of the Ombudsman

P.O. Box 126
PORT VILa.

_ Dear madame,
s ENQUIRIES

Your letter OMBlBl;BGfMNFPferrl of 07 February refers,

I write to endorse the Public Prosecutor’s Comments cn al] the
matters raiseq, He is more conversant with some of this matters
as invastigating officers are constantly eommunicating with him
©n the progress of investigation.

Should you Still require further information Ch any of +this
matters, please do not hesitate tgo writs.

Thank you far your understanding.

Yours Sincerely,

y

(Luc SIBHA(J—F:'

Commissioner of Pglice =
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OFFICE OF THE }MAR]%ﬁ ¢
OMBUDSMAN
P. O. BOX. 126
PORT VILA
G % VANUATU
Phone: 27200 /26757 Fax: 27140
OMB317/96/MNFP/js 8 March 19396
Mr Seoule Takal
Acting Commissioner of Police
Police Headquarters
PMB 014
PORT VILA
Dear Sir, ‘h. =
MANCES: VT824.590 - 1988
dapamment of Local Government that a prosecution file was
forwarded: wi’jceuﬁ'_ ealin%l888 following the non-reimbursement of advances to Mr
Charlie Kaimt (F!'gm;dmi.,af the -Efate Local Government) including the enclosed
documenis. - - Wi
Could you plaasa-»éhea[w -tmﬂmsumatmr and lef me know the reasons why it was not
investigated‘then, and‘l:meraby request your office to investigate it now.
I thank you in advance for your cooperation in this matter.
Yours faithfully,
Encld.
Copies: - F"ublicﬁnﬁéﬁumr
- Local Government Depariment, Att: Martin Tete
Cocyd 7
/ h
z O 3 . 244
—x - ® Lu i 2 Ce
(;;,,;l. cuj\,lu o L,r LR L.,w\‘ _ D .
; =¥ . b PG TSI T8
[t & m, h(‘___k .‘.‘_‘_ “LTG{;} N "{‘L_;_A-J\L'\ ,-?_,’u\, 6‘-(._.{*;\ f‘



REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

PRIVATE MAIL BAG 021
PORT VILA
VANUATU

JTL/rm
LG 2/12/35

2né Aucust 1868

Commissioner of Police
Police Headgquarter
Private Mail Bag (074
ZORT VILA

Dear sir

21952

Telephone :

AuNey b,

REPUBLIQUE DE VANUATU

SERVICE DES AUTORITES LOCALES

SAT POSTAL PRIVE 021
PORT VILA
VANUATL

OMBUDSMAN REPORT ON SHEFA PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT PRESTIDENT

your office

~ha

[

Pass experience shows that your office had fail to prosecuted

to carried

report for prosecuticn,

<he above mentioned report complied by the Ombudsman's
ice on 23rxd July 1996 and made public on the same cay.

o

cut a full investigatio

apove mentioned on the account o misappreopriation.

- Therefore, I strongly 4
investigation

Prossecuticn.

Provincial

emand

in asprepTizte manner

Affairs

I~

CC |: Department of Public
cc |z ActTorney General Cha
¢Cc : Ministry of Homs Aff
¢cc : Prinvipal Electoral
cc : Chairman Electoral C
cc : Ombudsman COffice.

Prossgutor
mber
airs
Office
cmmissicn

the
your office to carrisd out the
as soon as pessible for




OFFICE OF THE

OMBUDSMAN
P. 0. BOX. 1256
PORT VILA
VANUATU
Phons: 27200/ 26757 Fax: 27140
OMB2C38/96/MNFP/js 13 August 1996

Mr Luc Siba
Commissioner
Police Headguarters
PMB 014

PORT VILA

Dear Sir,
RE: SHEFA REPORT

Following my letter dated 23rd of July 1896 and Pursuant to the provisicns of Article
63(1) of the Constitution and Section 22 and 23 of the Ombudsman Act, | have
forwarded tc you a cepy of the Final Report on the alleged misappropriaticn of funds
by the President and maladministration of Shefa Provincial Council. | ask you to
note the findings and recommendations.

At the sxpiration of 15 days from the date of receipt by you of this letter, | shall be
requesting details of what action, if any, you have taken in respect of my
recommendations. May | remind you of the provisiens of Section 25(2) of the
Ombudsman Act which provides:-

; “For the purposes of Article E3(4) of the Constitution, the Prime Minister or the
: person in charge of the refevant Public Authority, or Ministerial Departrment or
Govemmental body or other service or body referred to under Section 14 of this
Act, as the case may be, shall, within a reasonatle time, as specified by the
Ombudsman, decide upon the findings of the Ombudsman and shall notify the
Ombudsman in writing of, what steps he propcses to take (and notiiy the
OmeEudsman if he does not propese to take any action) to give effect to his
recommendations”,

| look ferward to hearing from you within the time s&t above.

YoursA=ithiully,
5"

MADIE-NCELLE FERRIEUX PATTESECN
OMEUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU.



Avned 2.a

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU BLIQUE DE VANUATU

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE DES AUTORITES LOCALES

PRIVATE MAIL BAG 021 SAC POSTAL PRIVE 021
~ PORT VILA . PORT VILA
VANUATU " Teiephone : 22252 VANUATU

20 August 1996
LG: 6/11/7

To: The Commissiomer
Vanuatu Police Constabulary
PORT VILA
Vanuatn

cc: Ombudsman of the Republic of Vanuatu

cc: First Secretary, Ministry of Home Affairs
cc: Public Prosecutor

cc: Attormey General

cc: Auditor

e ALLEGATION oOF MISUSE oF PUBRLIC FUND BY THE
PREESIDENT OoOF SHEF.A PROVINCE
M. CHARLIE ALMET

_._..—_—...-—..-_-.—.__-.—_-_.—__

T~ 315 now almost sevel (7} months after when I had presented the first

L e

Full Coverage Report in +the case of the President of Shefa Province Mr. Char-
lie RAIMET.

m™his is a very serious case and it is still yet to be finalized by the
Police Investigationm Department. I understand that It would take sometime
before the final report would be ready to be presented to Court for the neces-

sary proceedings.

Bowever, in the same report, I have made several recommendations. One of
which that it would be most appropriate for (Mr. Charlie Xalmet's) case to be
dealt with promptly in order to stop his committing of further breaches of

law.

The Department of Provincial Affairs 1s taprribly concerned over the
prolonged attitude currently experienced on the time consuming in formalizing
and completing your side of story particularly on this case.

I have noted that the officer who was dealing with the above case is
currently taking his vacation and should only returned to take on his normal
duts semstime in Tecamber of this year 1596. I have notad alse that prior to

- T~ -
=S Sl .b_'=-

nis departure on vacabiom, va hazd not given any brisling Lo the police oflicses



ANNEX - a

currently taking OVer. gtrictly speaking such situnation surely means that
this very sericus case€ which requires urgent court hearing and proceedings may
temporarily be put aside nefore further investigations could be completed.

For vour inforsatiom, Mr Charlie EALMET’s illegal drawing of 200,000
vatu monthly salary and regular cash advances are still continuing-

The Accountant of Shefa’ Prcrin.;':e Mrs Wendy SOPE had confirmed to =me
today (20.08.96) that Mr. Charlie FKALMET has already so far this year taken
personal cash advances up to approximately Jupne of 18897.

Therefore, unless Mr. Charlie KALMET is promptly taken to court for kis
illegal dealings, he would continue to draw the 200,000 vatu monthly salary
and commit more personal cash advance of Shefa Province fund.

Thus, it is felt that Sergeant George Twomy, Officer In-Charge CID, CDI1
who deals with this patter and who is currently on vacation should be called
upon to resuse duty in order that he completes this assigned task immediately
in order that Mr. Charlie Kalmet can be put before the court urgently for his
illegal dealings and for misuse of public fund. *

Yours faithfully,

MJ.TETE
PRINCIPAL FINANCE OFFICER
DEPARTMENT OF PROVINCIAL AFFAIRS

)



Avwey 3

VANUATU POLICE FORCE

Private Mail Bag 014
Port Vila
VANUATU

FAX : (678) 25315
TELEX : (771) 1127 VPF NOC
TELEPHONE : (678) 22222 - Ext, : 222

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

Your Reference :

Our Reference : 01/02/§35

To: Marie-Noelle Ferrieux Patterson Date: Z7 August 1996

Ombudsman
P.0O. Box 126
PORT VITA

Dear Madame,

RE : REPORT SHEFA PROVINCE

Your letter CMB2036/96/MNFP/js of 13 August 1996 refers.

The case 1s currently under investigation and we still have yet
to obtain a statement from Mr. Kalmet before we finalise the
docket in preparedness for submission to the Public Proasecution

Cffice.

When this is done we will notify your office.




REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

PRIVATE MAIL BAG 02
PORT VILA
VANUATU Teieghaone ;

gy
-

30th August 1994

LG: E/11/7

TO: The Commissicner of Police
{Attention): Police Officer In-Charge

CID, CD1
cc: ttorney General
cCci Auditor General

oot First Secretary, Ministsvy of Home Alfairs
cc: Cmbudsman of the Republic of Vamuatu

Dear Sir,

ADDITIONAL BECCRDS OF PERSONAL CASH ADVANCES

TAREN EY
MR. CHARLIE EALMET

Please refer to my initialed -Intermal Audit Report- of the 4th dav of

ANNEA 10

REPUBLIQUE DE VANUATU

SERVICE DES AUTORITES LOCALES

5AC POSTAL PRIVE 021
PORT VILA
YANUATU

o

March 1996 and the attached self explanatory copies of the Shefa Provinces

General Payment Vouchers (GFVs]),
In due resgect of our

statement of ©proven records of additional ©personal
obtained from the Skefa Provinces fund by Mr.
former President of the Shefa Province.

The total additienal amount zlready committed from 2nd hal?

1998 to the last half of Auvgust 1996 Is V72,224,000,

‘{J -i—-—l

T -
INCIZA

DET.E’.".'T’!:}? OT: ':"3”""1' AL AFTATES

verhal conversation ia
last week on the above subject, I hereby present

my office of
forthwith a
casn advances

Charlie EALMET,

Tebruary



ANNEX ﬁ_'

OFEFIECE OF THE

OMBUDSMAN
F.O BOX.128
PORT VILA
VANUATU
Prone: 27200/ 28787 Fax: 27140 / 25660
OMB125/96/MNFP/erl 24th January 1296

Inspector NAMAKA
Police Headquarters
P.M.B. 014

PORT VILA

Dear Inspector,

RE: LEADERSHIP CODE

| request under section 14 and 17 of the Ombudsman Act the following
informaticn:

- Any report of misconduct of Commissioner Luc Siba;

- Any report of miscanduct of Mr Willie Jimmy (2ssaults Clarence Marae,
Kzltau Aiong).

Thank ycu in advance for your cocperation,

Yeurs faithfully,

l
|

. a4
WAL < —

- =L LE FERRIEUX PATTERSON
OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU.



VANUATU POLICE FORCE

Private Mail Bag 014
Port Vila
Vanuatu.

Telephone : (678) 22222
Fax : (678) 22800

Ref : 01/01/20

Date : 25 April 1996

To : Mrs. Marie-Noelle Ferrisux Pattersocn
Ombudsman
P.C. Box 126
PORT VILA

Dear Madame,

REPORT CONCERNING COMMISSIONER OF POLICE
AND MR. WILLIE JIMMY

Your inguiry into the above reports refers.

I do not have in our files any official report concerning the
Commissioner of Police in any matter.

Mr. Willie Jimmy'’s case for assault is near completion and I will
endeavour to advise your office of the results in due cause.

Thank you for vyour understanding.

"
(George Namaka)
Inspector
Acting Officer Commanding C€ID




Annex 13

POLICE PROCEDURES

1!, A complaint will normally be reported to the police through a visit, letter, telephone call, or tele-
radio to a Police Station by the complainant. The police can also investigate any allegations on
its own initiative.

2. Once acomplaint is reported in a Police Station the fol lowing actions are immediately taken:

2.1, Rtisimmediately recorded in a register called the Station Occurrence Book ("O.B."). The Q.B.
records all daily reports and information that come in the Palice Station on crimes, requests for
police assistance, general information of all policemen in that particular Station, ste.

2.2. The complaint is then registered in ancther register  called  the
Crime Register Book (‘CRB’) and given aCHB number. This CRB number is entered, together
with the name of the complainant and the offenca alleged to have been committed, on the
Crime Docket and Invastigation Dairy form.

2.3. Apre-printed Police Crime Dockst, also called “case file”, is then opened for this complaint. The
purpose of this Crime Docket is to store and maintained all documents obtained during the
investigation of this complaint.

2.4.  AnInvestigation Diary form is then attached to the cover of this Crime Docket. The purpose of
this Investigation Diary is to record all actions taken by the investigation officer and also
instructions issued to him by his
Officer-In-Charge Investigation Branch (‘OIC IB") when the Crime Dockat is brought to his QIC
1B for checking during the investigation of the complaint. The OIC IB informs the investigation
officer the next date when he conducts the next check on the progress of the invaestigation on
this farm.

2.5. The Crime Docket is then handed over the OIC IB where upon receiving it, he immediately starts
issuing his instructions on the Investigation Diary to one of his investigators he allocates this
complaint to camy out the investigation. The OIC IB then conducts weekly checks on the
progress of the Investigation.

2.6. The OIC IB also maintains his own register to racord new Crime Docksts he receives, the dates
where they will be brought up for his personal checking, the dates the Crime Dockets are sent
for prosecution or for file away, and also the movements of Crime Dockets if they are sent to
other Stations for investigation.

2.7. When the investigation is  completed, it is  brought back to the
Officer-In-Charge for the final check bafore he sends it to the Public Prosecution Department
for prosecution,

2.8. During the investigation f the complaint appears o be acivil matter and not a criminal matter the
complainant is advised to see the Public Salicitor or a privats lawyer.

2.9. A Cnrme Docket on an outstanding investigation can only be filed away on the recommendation
of the investigation officer when the complaint is very old, too trivial, tha complainant left
Vanuatu for good, paending new informations, or when the complainant withdraws his complaint.
For the latter, for a complaint invelving injury of a serious nature being caused to another man by
anether, or, public properties, or, against morality, the Crime Dockat must at all times sent to the
Public Prosecutor who alone makes a decision whather to prosacute or otherwise,

2.10. A progress of investigation can be easily monitored in the CRB, on the Investigation Diary form,
and also in tha OIC IB's register on the informations entered in them. These informations will tell
the CIC IB on the progress of investigation and if delayed for too long for what reasons and
remedial actions. The delay in an investigation will usually occur when the OIC IB falls to conduct
his weekly inspections on the progress on such investigation.

2.11. During the police investigation stage on any complaint involving public properties, leaders, or a
major investigation (e.g. fraud, dangerous drugs, offences committed in Vanuatu and other
countries) where advice on technical arsas had to be sought, the Public Prosecutor and/or tha
Aftorney General is consulted however, the responsibility for the continuity investigation still
rests with the Commissioner of Police. Only when the peclice completes its investigation and
forwards the case to the Public Prosecutor for the purpose of prosecution that the responsibility
of the case automatically transfers to the Public Prasecutor,



